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THEME

NamPower employees are synonymous with the
success of the company. They are the reason
the company has since its inception, consistently
delivered on its mandate. The theme for this
years’ Annual Report, “Consistent and incremental
strides towards improved local generation capacity
and maintaining a secure supply of electricity in
Namibia”, mirrors the motto NamPower employees
live by. Acompany is only as great as its employees,
therefore through this report, we recognise and
celebrate the men and women of NamPower, the
not-always-seen green army, whose collective
efforts make NamPower the great company that it
is today.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The report includes an overview of NamPower’s
strategy and business model, the principal risks we
face and our operations. Information on our human
capital and all matters relating to sustainability
are additionally reported on, followed by the
consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ended 30 June 2018.

ASSURANCE

The Board, with the support of the Audit and Risk
Committee, is ultimately responsible forNamPower’s
system of internal controls which is designed to
identify, evaluate, manage and provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement and loss.

The consolidated Annual Financial Statements from
pages 90 to 199 were audited by Deloitte & Touche
and Grand Namibia.
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Amongst a host of achievements, NamPower regards the following as notable:

-

NamPower was fully able to secure security of electricity supply to the nation
at all times during the period under review, with no major transmission system
disturbances experienced.

An overall power transmission system and availability of 99.87% was recorded
during the period under review.

A strong financial position and investment grade rating were maintained.

An additional 190 km of transmission lines built resulting in a total length of
transmission network of 11,673 km.

There were a 135 projects in progress with a combined value of N$ 3.59 billion.

A number of transmission projects, to the value of approximately N$ 391 million
were completed.

50 MW from Independent Power Producers (IPPs) was connected to the grid.

A profit, after tax, of more than N$ 1.2 billion was made.
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Investment income increased by 15% from N$ 673 million to N$ 772 million.

The average customer restoration time after a power interruption (CAIDI)
decreased from 4.18 to 3.05 minutes of loss of supply when compared to the
previous reporting period.

The Fibre Optic Commercialisation project is in the implementation phase.

High levels of availability of services, local area network and wide area network
(99.98%) were recorded by iServ.

More than 800 employees benefited from various learning and development
programmes.

253 students and trainees were provided with bursaries at an estimated cost of
N$ 10.3 million.

An investment of N$ 4.2 million in various corporate social investment
programmes was made.

Formulation of the 2018 to 2023 strategic plan which sets the tone of the
generation agenda for the strengthening of transmission infrastructure.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL
AND THE VALUE WE CREATE
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NamPower acknowledges the responsibility of
being a catalyst in the development of a vibrant
economy, an empowered society and a protected
environment, as driven by Vision 2030, the Fifth
National Development Plan (NDP5) and the
Harambee Prosperity Plan (HPP).

NamPower is an essential part of the energy value chain, energising
and enhancing the value of the national grid that it manages and
provides electricity to all sectors of the Namibian economy and its
people. NamPower is an integrator in terms of interconnection with
other power utilities in the Southern African Development Community
(SADC) region, and an optimiser in terms of extending the deployment
of technologies or equipment into the distribution network. In so doing,
NamPower is an enabler of human, intellectual, social and relationship
capital run on the principles of good governance and ethical values.

Social and relationship capital is enhanced through the company’s
corporate social investment programmes, with substantial investments
made in this regard over the years.

Being keenly aware of the national resources placed in its trust to create
lasting returns and developmental impact for the nation, NamPower
implements and manages all projects in a socio- economically and
environmentally sustainable manner.

The economic returns include generation and transmission
infrastructure of a high quality which provides all sectors of the
economy and its citizens with reliable, safe and secure sources of
energy.




OUR BUSINESS MODEL
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ABOUT US

NamPower is Namibia’s national power utility and has, since its establishment on
1 July 1996, consistently remained a mainstay of the nation’s economy.

As a public enterprise, NamPower adheres to the legal and regulatory framework provided for in the State-owned
Enterprises Governance Act (Act No. 3 of 2006) as amended, the Companies Act (Act No. 28 of 2004), the Electricity
Act (Act No.4 of 2007) and all other legislation applicable to its business. The overall strategic direction and governance
of NamPower is the responsibility of the Board of Directors.

The strategic direction NamPower is pursuing aims to enhance its mission “to provide for the energy needs of our
customers, fulfil the aspirations of our staff and satisfy the expectations of our stakeholders” through the provision of
quality and reliable products and services at a reasonable cost in a sustainable manner.

¥4
N

> | OUR CORE BUSINESS

NamPower’s core business is generation, transmission and energy trading, the latter of which takes place within the
Southern African Power Pool (SAPP), the largest multilateral energy platform on the African continent. NamPower
supplies bulk electricity to the Regional Electricity Distributors (REDs), Mines, the Namibia Water Corporation Ltd
(NamWater), Farms and Local Authorities (where REDs are not operational) throughout Namibia.

The key role players in the Electricity Supply Industry (ESI) are the Ministry of Mines and Energy (MME) as custodian
of Namibia’s energy sector; the Electricity Control Board (ECB) as the regulator of the ESI; NamPower, as Namibia’s
electricity utility, and the REDs and some Local Authorities as the country’s distribution licensees across the country.
A number of Independent Power Producers (IPPs) have recently come on board as generators of renewable energy.
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Generation

NamPower owns and operates three power stations with the combined installed capacity of 489.50 MW. These power
stations are the main sources of local power generation capacity in the country:

347 MW 120 MW 22.5 MW

Ruacana hydro-electric Van Eck coal-fired Anixas diesel-powered
power station in the power station outside of power station at Walvis
Kunene Region Windhoek Bay

Transmission

NamPower owns a world-class transmission system and a network of 66 kV to 400 kV of overhead lines spanning a
distance of more than 11,673 km, one of the longest of its kind in the world. The national grid has been designed and
largely built by Namibians.

In addition to these lines, Transmission’s asset base includes one hundred and forty nine 66 kV — 400 kV transmission
substations, 3,615 MVA of transformer capacity, ninety four 11 kV — 33 kV distribution substations and specialised HYDC
and SVC devices.

Energy Trading

The robust Energy Trading Platform system enables successful trading activities such as load forecasting, market
scheduling, energy and financial settlement as well as reporting, all with a high degree of accuracy.

National Control Centre

The ‘pulse’ of NamPower — the National Control Centre, situated in Windhoek - operates on a 24-hour basis to ensure
system availability and is responsible for real-time operation and management of the utility’s generation, transmission

and distribution system.
NamPower Annual Report 2018 _



ABOUT US (continued)
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e e e NamPower’s values express the Company’s aspiration to achieve high
"‘ OUR PEOPLE ]% VALUES @ ethical standards in its operations, to build a culture of teamwork that will
: bring out the best in each individual, to focus on serving its customers,
NamPower has a dedicated staff complement of 978 permanent and 108 contract employees who embody excellence ° and to prioritise the safety of staff and the public at all times.
and commitment and who, through their collective skills and knowledge, form part of the nation’s infrastructural backbone. :
The work of these Namibian men and women, including an experienced senior management team, is overseen by a .
Board of Directors actively involved in the enforcement of best practice corporate governance and other business :
principles. .
@...................@..................@
OUR MANDATE . . .
6 Integrity ‘ Health, Safety and ; Empowerment
NamPower’s mandate is to generate, transmit, supply and trade in electricity and to a limited extent, distribute electricity - We strive to be honest in everything = Environment . Every employee has the opportunity
’ ’ ’ ' * we do and are determined to adhere : We will create and uphold a safe , to be trained and developed, and
: to ethical business principles and . working environment in all our « to apply that knowledge in the
x_ 7 . good corporate governance at all ° activities. We shall respect our ° workplace. We welcome feedback
Q OUR VISION * times. . environment in all our dealings . from all stakeholders and seek to
: « and protect both the physical and ° learn from all situations.
. ° human environment at all times. |
To be a leading energy company in Africa, which excels in customer service, people development and technological . : .
innovation. ° . °
; Teamwork @ Customer Focus ; Accountability

©

To provide for the energy needs of our customers, fulfil the aspirations of our staff and satisfy the expectations of our
stakeholders.

OUR MISSION

_ NamPower Annual Report 2018

NamPower consists of a workforce
with diverse skills and different levels
of knowledge and experience. We
value everyone’s contribution to our
collective effort as we strive to work
together for the good of the company
and the country.

We value our customers and
commit to serving them timeously
and diligently with customer
service and satisfaction as our
focus and our aim.

We accept responsibility for our
respective roles and pledge to
conduct ourselves in a manner that
is consistent with the positions and
responsibilities entrusted to us.
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CONSOLIDATED KEY STATISTICS

The Group recorded the following key statistics over the past three years:

1. Total revenue (N$'000) 6,594,816 5,920,719 5,146,576
. Taxation (N$'000) (522,247) (406,929) 1,786,841
3. Capital Expenditure (N$’000) 663,140 752,880 503,799
Property, plant and equipment 656,393 724,545 503,109
Intangible assets 6,747 28,335 690
4. Coal Cost Per Ton (N$) 2,011 1,955 1,587
5. Average Price per unit sold (Cents) 166.9 153.2 134.6
6. Number of electricity customers 2,879 2,880 2,871
7 System Maximum (Hourly demand)
- (MW)
- Excluding Skorpion 602 631 608
- Including Skorpion 639 677 667
8. Units into System (GWh) 4,826 4,610 4,506
NamPower (Pty) Ltd 1,165 1,660 1,421
ZESCO 361 334 334
Eskom 1,991 2,090 1,956
ZESA - - 55
ZPC 357 348 349
EDM - 3 23
Aggreko - - 301
STEM 828 136 55
Omburu Sun Energy (Pty) Ltd
(Innosun) 12 12 12
REFITs 112 28 _
9. Units sold (GWh) 4,285 4,157 4,008 -
Abbreviations:
Customers in Namibia 3,585 3,454 3,324
Skorpion Zinc mine 444 471 440 AU$  Australian Dollar
Orange River 142 132 145 :Dr Electricidade de Mozambique
Exports 114 100 99 Fe F:irrOValue
. GBP  Great British Pound
10. Installed Capacity (MW) 790 790 790 GWh  Gigawatt hour
- Ruacana 347 347 347 o E:ZTOTZE
- Van Eck 120 120 120 MME  Ministry of Mines and Energy
- Interconnector 300 300 300 MTC  Mobile Telecommunications
- AniXaS 22'5 225 225 '\an\vlvF maeri?g‘il:tlt\lature Foundation
11. Transmission Lines A AP
- 400 kV (km) 1,179 988 988 OClI  Other comprehensive income
- 350 kV (km) 953 953 953 P;-II2 Profi;_o; |§ss
- 330 kV (km) 522 522 522 :OCI :tv‘:er‘zemrz:zomprehensive
- 220 kV (km) 3,207 3,206 3,206 ook beome S
- 132 kV (km) 2,263 2,258 2,257 SOFP _ Statement of inancial position
- 66 kV (km) 3,549 3[556 3[555 STEM Short Term Energy Market
SWER Single Wire Earth Return
12. Distribution Lines US$  Urited Satee Dollr.
- 33 kV (km 11,682 ZAR  South African Rand
_22kV Ekmg 4,980 11:8;2 11:3ig ZESA izﬁzﬁge Electricity Supply
. 19 kV (SWER) (km) 4,600 4,560 4,396 ZESCO (Z:aor:\b;:altfi\;e:‘:tricity Supply
- 11kV (km) 1,128 1,127 1,119 ZPC Zimbabwe Power Company
13. Employees 1,086 1,079 1,041

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2016 and 2017 financial years due to an error and reflect adjustments made, refer to note
30 and note 31.
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CONSOLIDATED KEY STATISTICS (continued)

CUSTOMERS AND OPERATING COST PER CUSTOMER SYSTEM MAXIMUM DEMAND (EXCL. SKOPRION) AND UNIT SALES
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STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

NAMPOWER STATEGY MAP 2014 - 2018

I : J To be a leading energy company in Africa, which excels in

NamPower customer service, people development and technological innovation.
Postrng te Netion srd egerd

Ensuring
that 100% of
the peak demand ¢ GOAL OF 2018
and at least 75% of
the electricity energy
demand will be supplied
from internal sources by 2018.

Theme 4 Ensure Meet
Financial Financial Financial
. ops. Sustainability Requirements
Sustainability Y q

Theme 3 Improve Meet
Stakeholder Stakeholder Customer
Relations Relations Expectations
Theme 2 :
s . f VEndiafse N Expand Gengra.tlon .
ecurity o Syst Optimise and Transmission Improve Risk Ensure NEEEP
Supply and Av);islaeg‘ir;iy Trade Options Infrastructure & Management Compliance
Efficiencies ey
Theme 1 . Entrench Our
. Improve Build Core Values and a
Leadershlp Leadership Capacity Employee Capacity © valuesa
(Leadership Power) (People Power) RetformanceiChitire
and Culture (Team Power)

Integrity Teamwork Accountability = Empowerment Health, Safety & Environment Customer Focus

The NamPower Mission is to provide for the energy needs of our customers, fulfill the aspirations of our staff and satisfy the expectations of our stakeholders.

Four key themes underpin NamPower’s 2014 — 2018 Strategic Plan as illustrated in the strategy map above. These
themes are supported by specific strategic objectives, measures and initiatives which were set in order to guide NamPower
towards fulfilling its goal of “Ensuring that 100% of the peak demand and at least 75% of the electricity energy demand
will be supplied from internal (Namibian) sources by 2018”. This goal is aligned with the 1998 White Paper on Energy
Policy, which was, until recently, the ruling expression of the Government’s policy on energy. The Energy White Paper
has since been replaced by the National Energy Policy.

NamPower completed the fifth and final year of its five-year Corporate Strategy and Business Plan (2014 — 2018) on
30 June 2018 and consequently NamPower’s management, in close collaboration with the Board of Directors, are in
the process of developing a new five-year Corporate Strategy and Business Plan (2019 — 2023) that is guided by our
vision and mission statement. Furthermore, the new NamPower strategic plan will be aligned to policy direction and
the National Integrated Resource Plan (NIRP), whilst also considering trends in the electricity market and changes
in customer behaviour. Our aim is to deliver sustainable security of supply and a least cost tariff path that will support
economic growth and maintain the business’ financial sustainabiliy. We will always consider the implications of our
decisions and actions on our stakeholders, the economy and the environment.

In driving the strategic plan to be developed, NamPower’s business units will in the coming year develop business plans
and key initiatives aligned to the strategic goals set out by the organisational strategy. NamPower will implement the
goals set out in its strategic plan through each of its business units and their respective business plans.

NamPower Annual Report 2018




GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

GOVERNMENT
OF THE REPUBLIC
OF NAMIBIA
(Shareholder)

NAMPOWER
BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

ELECTRICITY
CONTROL
BOARD
(The Regulator)

NAMPOWER
EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE

_ NamPower Annual Report 2018

Hon. Tom K Alweendo
Minister of Mines and Energy

Hon. Kornelia Shilunga Mr. Simeon Negumbo
Deputy Minister of Mines and Energy Permanent Secretary of Mines and Energy
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Kaunapaua Ndilula
(Chairperson)

MBA - Stellenbosch University, South Africa

M.A. Development Economics (Massachusetts, USA)

Holding two masters degrees and with diverse experience in business management,
strategy formulation and execution, Ms Ndilula’s more than 20 years of experience holds
significant value to the NamPower Board. As founder of the BFS group of companies, she
serves as Managing Director. Her institutional development capacity will come in handy in
steering the NamPower Board into a sustainable future.

Mr. Daniel Motinga

(Deputy Chairperson)

M.A. Economics

University of East Anglia, Norwich, United Kingdom

Renowned economist and researcher, Mr Motinga forms an integral part of the NamPower
Board. Publishing research in various fields as well as steering the direction of many
organisations as a respected manager and trustee for over 20 years, his vast experience in
economics, social policy and sector reform, gives him unique insight into the important role
NamPower has on the nation and its industries. He has served as a consulting economist
for the banking industry and is currently a Senior Relationship Manager for RMB Namibia.

Ms. Sara Katiti

(Director)
Masters in Development Finance, University of Stellenbosch, South Africa

The broad exposure of Ms Katiti's career has given her experience in resource
management, business development, operational strategic formulations, financial and
technology management and various other fields of business. Ms Katiti brings with her a
wealth of experience, having held various senior positions in Namibia’s corporate sector.

Ms. Anna Matebele

(Director)
Masters - Commercial and Financial Law,
Kings College London, United Kingdom

An experienced lawyer in the corporate world for the past 15 years, whose areas of
specialty has focused on regulation within financial services, ICT and the road sector.
Ms Matebele has served in various executive positions throughout her career providing
strategic direction on governance and legal issues. Ms Matebele brings with her vast Board
experience from the past 10 years in both the private sector and state-owned enterprises.

Dr. Detlof von Oertzen

(Director)

PHD - Physics (High Energy Nuclear Physics), University of Cape Town, South
Africa. Advanced MBA - Finance University of Adelaide, Australia

An independent technical and management consultant in the energy and radiation
sectors, Dr von Oertzen has extensive experience in the electricity and finance sectors.
His career which spans over more than 25 years, has laid the foundation for his in-
depth understanding and expertise in the fields of energy, the environment and radiation
protection thereby enabling collaboration with international, regional and local entities
such as the World Bank, United Nations Development Programme, International Atomic
Energy Agency, the Ministry of Mines and Energy, the Electricity Control Board and many
other regional authorities and regulators.
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Mr. Andreas Kanime
(Director)
MBA - University of KwaZulu Natal, South Africa

Andrew Kanime has operated at an executive level for the past 12 years and has
extensive corporate human resources management and business leadership experience
in the telecommunication, broadcasting, transport, banking, electricity and educational
sectors. His corporate experience is complimented by his uniquely combined set of
academic qualifications in the fields of business administration, accounting, finance,
human resources and public management. He brings to the NamPower Board humility and
a unique skills set, compounded by 8 years of direct corporate governance experience,
having held several positions of trust in Namibia.

Mr. Kahenge S. Haulofu

(Managing Director)
Advanced Management Program, Harvard Business School (Boston, USA),
B.Sc. Degree in Civil Engineering, Tampere University of Technology, Finland

A qualified Civil Engineer with 20 years of experience in the electricity industry, Mr Haulofu
has been the Managing Director of NamPower since July 2016. He has served in various
leadership and managerial positions at NamPower prior to his appointment as Managing
Director. As a dedicated NamPower employee, he has overseen the implementation of
various transmission and generation projects.

Prior to joining NamPower, Mr Haulofu was involved in strategic national water infrastructure
projects such as the construction of the water canals in the northern regions of Namibia.
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Back row: Front row:

Bertholdt Mbuere (Divisional Manager, Energy Trading), Lucia Hiveluah (Head NamPower Foundation),

Isac Tjombonde (Chief Officer, Corporate Services), Rinus Carstens (Acting Divisional Manager, Generation),
Braam Vermeulen (Divisional Manager, Transmission), Kahenge Simson Haulofu (Managing Director),

Reiner Jagau (Chief Officer, Power Systems Development), Selma Shaanika (Acting Chief Officer, Finance),

Christo Bezuidenhoudt (Senior Manager, Internal Audit). Gerson Rukata (Acting Chief Officer, Technical).
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CHAIRPERSON'’S STATEMENT

MS. KAUNAPAUA NDILULA

“Security of supply remains a priority and the Chairperson

strategic plan concluded by the Board is geared to
ensuring reliable supply of power, whilst improving
local generation capacity. The Board is committed to
ensure that the necessary capacity is established to
execute the targets set, especially in improving local
generation capacity and optimising our transmission
infrastructure. Thus, the new strategy is intended to

be cognisant of developments in technology and to
remain robust and responsive to take advantage of
technology advancements as they unfold over the

strategy period.”

| am delighted to present the 2018 NamPower Annual
Report under the theme “Consistent and incremental
strides towards improved local generation capacity and
maintaining a secure supply of electricity for Namibia”.

Whilst the focus of this report is the past year, there is
merit in providing a reflective analyis on the past five
years, as June 2018 also marks the end of the past five
year strategic plan.

Our increased infrastructure capacity, a strict maintenance
regime, together with an efficient energy trading business
and a dedicated workforce has enabled NamPower to fulfil
its mandate.

NamPower’s transmission network, providing electricity
across the vast Namibian landscape, has during the period
under review, built an additional 190 km of transmission
lines, resulting in a total length of a transmission network
of 11,673 km. Local generation capacity has increased
through the refurbishment and upgrade of existing plants,
as well as through facilitation and collaboration with the
private sector to deliver renewable capacity to the grid.

At the same time, NamPower continued to maintain a
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strong financial position and investment grade rating
over the years, with a rating of AA+Zaf affirmed during
the period under review. This was made possible through
prudent business decisions.

Notable achievements made during the past five year
period include:

» The improvement of existing generation plants such
as the completion of the Ruacana Turbine Runners
Replacement Project in 2016, which saw the station’s
installed capacity increase from 332 MW to 347 MW.

* Further development and improvement of the
transmission system and network of 66 kV to 400 kV
overhead lines and substations to accommodate the
growing electricity demand in the country.

» The commissioning of the Walvisbay Substation at
N$ 597 million.

* The integration of renewable energy into the grid
through the Renewable Energy Feed-In Tariff
(REFIT) programme as well as other renewable
energy projects developed by Independent Power
Producers.

» The significant investment into the rural electrification
programme which is executed in partnership with the
Ministry of Mines and Energy.

» Contributing to the socio-economic development
of the country through investing in communities
countrywide.

Ensuring that our business operates in a transparent,
ethical and accountable manner remained a critical aspect
of our business as it creates strong and sustainable value
for our shareholder and promotes the wellbeing of the
company over the long-term. The Board strives to ensure
that its corporate governance practices provide for the
effective stewardship of the company, guided by a Board
Charter to ensure we are keeping up with the highest
standards.

The Board is fully aware that even a well-run institution such
as NamPower faces specific risks and challenges. Risk
management therefore forms a vital part of our strategic
focus, with strategic risks managed and monitored at
Board as well as Executive level.

During the period under review, we have done far more
than simply harness the power of our infrastructure. We
have also renewed our efforts to harness the power of
our people and shall continuously strive towards being an
employer of choice in pursuit of our mission “To provide for
the energy needs of our customers, fulfil the aspirations of
our staff and satisfy the expectations of our stakeholders”.
The fact that more than half of the workforce have been in
the company’s employment for more than a decade is a
good indication of a highly conducive work environment.

NamPower’s dedicated women and men go beyond the
call of duty to ensure a continuous supply of electricity to
the nation. It is especially pleasing to note that there were
no major transmission system disturbances experienced
during the year under review. Where there were power
interruptions, the average customer restoration time
decreased from a mere 4.18 to 3.05 minutes with an
overall power transmission system availability of 99.87%
recorded. Likewise, plant availability for the power stations
recorded an above average performance of 95.30%
against a target of 92% for the year under review (bearing
in mind that this is influenced by the Kunene River flow to
the Ruacana Power Station).
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CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT (continued)

These impressive results were achieved through a track
record of operational effeciency and excellence, displayed
by the dedicated team of men and women at NamPower.
Trading options were also optimised during the period
under review, with smart import optimisation having
allowed NamPower to reduce on USA dollar denominated
supply options, which are relatively expensive.

As an integral part of society, we also have a responsibility
to invest in the communities in which we operate. To this
effect, through its Foundation, NamPower invested over
N$ 4.2 million in various corporate social investment
programmes during the period under review. NamPower
continues to make significant investments in providing
educational opportunities to young Namibians, and has
during the period under review invested an amount of
N$10.3 million.

Moreover, in line with our ethos, NamPower takes
responsibility for the environmental outcomes of its
activities and outputs, as these affect society as a whole.
A detailed account of the various programs in place is
included in the Sustainability Report.

In preparation for our new five-year strategic plan, the
period under review was important to establish the gaps
and reposition the building blocks for a new five-year
(2019 — 2023) Corporate Strategy and Business Plan.

We have consulted our primary stakeholders, including
our shareholder, to engage and gauge their input into
our plans for the next five years. In our effort to remain
relevant, we made deliberate efforts through a series of
planning, engagements and consultations to define our
generation mix which will serve as the basis of the new
five-year generation strategic goals.

Moving forward, the Board recognises that the new
strategic plan needs to be responsive to the transition in
the energy sector, while at the same time continuing to
provide reliable, sustainable electricity at cost reflective
tariffs to the nation, with reduced dependency on electricity
imports.

The fuel mix is becoming greener, spurred by a confluence
of government policy, customer demand and technological
innovation. Continued improvements in energy efficiency
have begun to bend the demand curve, with energy
demand predicted to grow at a slower pace. Day demand
is more and more supressed mainly due to solar PV (roof-
top, embedded and grid-connected). Although Namibia has
experienced an increasing peak (average annual increase
of 2%) and energy demand (average annual increase of
4%) over the past five years, going forward we expect
the overall growth rate in demand to be lower than that of
the past five years mainly due to customers investing in
self-generation and a lower growth in the Gross Domestic
Product (GDP).
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With the shift in the market model, towards a modified
single buyer market model, an increased number of market
participants is envisaged, which will significantly increase
the market complexity. A closer collaboration between
stakeholders in the market is therefore needed to manage
this increased complexity.

Security of supply remains a priority and the strategic
plan concluded by the Board is geared to ensuring
reliable supply of power, whilst improving local generation
capacity. The Board is committed to ensure that the
necessary capacity is established to execute the targets
set, especially in improving local generation capacity and
optimising our transmission infrastructure. Thus, the new
strategy is intended to be cognisant of developments in
technology and to remain robust and responsive to take
advantage of technology advancements as they unfold
over the strategy period.

A significantly improved generation capacity is a key
objective of our new strategy. Whilst the realisation of
these projections might not all conclude during our term,
we would have laid the foundation and started some, whilst
some are to be realised in future.

Given an improvement in the financial position and
hence performance of the company over the past two
financial years (see details on the financial performance
of the company on page 74), the Board together with the
Management team is confident that the new strategic
plan will deliver a competitive and demand-responsive
company. Our aim with the new plan is to pursue the best
strategies to achieve our objectives.

Innovation, business development and leveraging new
technologies, will be a key enabler for NamPower to attract
top talent and remain an employer of choice that will provide
opportunities for career growth in an environment that
tends to have a skills shortage despite the transforming
business landscape. NamPower will place additional
emphasis on developing its future leaders through
succession planning, effective recruitment and building
the capacity of the plan so as to create an organisational
capacity to deliver the strategic plan and build a pipeline
for future leadership and ensuring business continuity.

Reflecting on our solid and reliable performance for more
than two decades and the period under review in the
electricity supply industry, | can confidently say that this is
one of the most exciting times to be part of our local energy
industry, pioneering new and innovative solutions for our
customers and the nation. As we forge ahead, drawing
upon our collective capabilities and the expertise of our
people, | am confident that we will play a leading role in the
energy economy for many more decades to come.

Appreciation and Conclusion

Against the backdrop of achievements, opportunities
and challenges, | would like to, on behalf of the Board
of Directors, thank the government and all our key
stakeholders for their continued support, without which the
delivery of the company’s mandate would be a tough call.

| would further like to express our gratitude towards
Honourable Obeth Kandjoze, whose term as Minister of
Mines and Energy ended in February this year.

Inthe same vein, we welcome our new minister, Honourable
Tom Alweendo and we look forward to working with him
and his team in realising our new strategic plan.

To the NamPower Executive Team and the staff, your hard
work is commendable and we the Board will continue to
rely on your commitment.

K Ndilula
Chairperson




MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

] want to acknowledge the

contribution of all of our people,
and to commend their hard work
and commitment for making each

year a success.”

Electricity is a fundamental input to, and
constitutes the critical infrastructure of the
Namibian economy, which is largely built
on a reliable supply of electricity.

The almost linear relationship between electricity and
development, which is only further enhanced by the
inexorable progress of technology, underpins society as we
have come to know it today. Stable and secure electricity
is therefore imperative for national governments, both for
basic household needs and for industrial progress and
overall economic growth.

The challenge however, is to keep the supply system
stable, thus making business as usual not an option in the
power sector.

Users in commercial and industrial environments expect
a power supply system reliability of at least 99%, and as
highlighted in the Chairperson’s statement, NamPower
excelled in this regard with an overall power transmission
system and availability of 99.87% recorded during the
period under review.
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Reflecting on the performance of all areas of our business,
| can certainly report that favourable and steady progress
has been made during the year under review. Although
as in any business NamPower had challenges and risks,
these were mitigated through responsive enterprise risk
management and proactive leadership.

The gross profit margin increased to 49% compared to
47% achieved in 2017, mainly driven by an increase in
revenue. The cost of electricity increased by 9% from N$
3.1 billion to N$ 3.4 billion for the period under review.

The total energy generated by the Ruacana Hydro Power
Station and sent out in the FY 2017/2018 amounted
to 1,144 GWh, which is significantly below the annual
average of 1,500 GWh. The rainfall experienced during
the period under review was lower on average than the
prior year and consequently there was a decrease in the
dispatch of the local cheaper generation from the Ruacana
Power Station.

Maximum demand (including Skorpion) decreased from
677 MW achieved in June 2017 to 639 MW in June 2018,
representing a decrease of 6%. The decrease in maximum
demand is attributed to a decrease in production in the

mining sector and a struggling economy. Renewable energy
solutions such a solar water heating and installation of roof
top solar photovoltaics have also contributed to the lower
demand. Namibia saw a stable growth of peak demand for
power, from 614 MW in 2013 to 677 MW in 2017.

Infrastructural Development

A number of projects aimed at enhancing the efficiency
of current generation capacity, expanding NamPower’s
transmission network, the integration of Renewable
Energy plants, as well as ensuring that the infrastructure is
well operated and maintained are in progress.

Transmission projects to the value of approximately N$391
million were commissioned during the year, among which
are ten of the fourteen REFIT projects. In total, there were
135 projects in progress with a combined value of N$ 3.59
billion. These, as well as projects in progress are reported
in detail under “Our Operations”.

Going forward, NamPower will leverage its unrivalled
transmission coverage of the country to its advantage in
exploring and developing new opportunities and revenue
streams in Namibia and the Southern African Power Pool

MR. KAHENGE S. HAULOFU

Managing Director

(SAPP) region. Multiple line strengthening projects are
planned, the largest of which include the Auas — Gerus
400 kV, the Auas — Kokerboom 400 kV and the Obib to
South Africa (Oranjemond) 400 kV lines. These projects
will provide numerous benefits to Namibia’s national power
grid.

Accommodating Renewable Electricity Generation

The integration of renewable energy into the grid through
the REFIT programme as well as other renewable
energy projects by IPPs who were not part of the REFIT
programme, was successfully implemented. Various IPPs
positively contributed to increased generation capacity in
the country, with generation capacity of 50 MW added to
the grid during the period under review.

NamPower embraces the principle of increasing renewable
energy technologies as part of the energy supply mix in
Namibia. During the period under review, the NamPower
Board recommended the development of a 33 MW Wind
Power project, 40 MW PV Power Project and a 40 MW
Biomass Power Project. The business cases for these
projects support key objectives as set out in the National
Energy Policy, the NIRP and the HPP.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT (continued)

Our committment to increase local generation supports
Government’s objectives to develop multiple renewable
energy projects that will in the near future provide Namibia
with low cost green energy in alignment with the NIRP.

Customer Service and Consumer Participation

NamPower will work to support the energy efficiency of
all stakeholders in the value chain, and our long-term
success will be critically dependent on the way we continue
to work with our stakeholders and our customers. The
promise we made last year to focus on enhanced service
delivery has borne fruit and is clearly evidenced in high
and consistent levels of system reliability and excellent
customer power restoration times.

In further striving for operational excellence, the
implementation of a new contingency planning strategy will
allow for improved preparation for situations when major
lines (such as the 400 kV and 220 kV transmission lines),
critical transformers, and power stations are unavailable
due to the requisite preventative maintenance.

Transformation

As the electricity market in Southern Africa and Namibia
continues to transform, a need for NamPower to increase
customer focus to respond to the changing customer needs
and explore new opportunities for growth in a changing
market environment is crucial. One of our main aims is to
create flexibility in the electricity system, so it can adapt
to the ever-changing needs in the energy sector, address
changing customer expectations, consider what areas
of the future energy value chain will deliver maximum
benefits to the shareholder, and pursue a diverse mix of
energy including renewables and storage.

We also support Government policies that encourage
increased participation from energy users and will continue
to explore and deliver solutions that have tangible benefits
for our customers and for the wider community.

Our Human Capital

Great emphasis is placed on investing in our people
through adopting sound human resource practices,
implementation of training and development programs,
wellness programs, and the execution of an efficient
peformance management system. During the period under
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review, over half of the staff complement received relevant
learning and development opportunities.

One of the aspects requiring additional focus in the coming
year and beyond will be the representation of women in
both management and specialised/senior supervisory
employment categories. Various initiatives on advancing
gender equity are under consideration, with a target of
30% (from 20% in the FY 2017/2018) by the end of the
three-year Affirmative Action (AA) Plan, in 2019.

Appreciation and Thanks

I would like to thank the Board of Directors for their
positive engagement and support. | would also like to
thank our regulator, the ECB for their feedback which
helps us achieve our shared goals of providing value to
our electricity consumers.

| would further like to acknowledge the contribution of all
of our staff members, and to commend their hard work
and commitment to making each year a success. Their
hard work ensures that the electricity network, market
and infrastructure meet the needs of our customers and
of the communities we serve. We look forward to good
progress in making even bigger strides and recording a

solid performance in 2019.

K S. Haulofu
Managing Director




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board conforms to the highest
standards of corporate governance, and
is guided by a Board Charter which has
been developed to assist the Board and
its committees in the exercise of their
responsibilities. The Charter is reviewed
annually and revised when necessary.

The key responsibility of the Board, as described in the
Charter, is to guide NamPower in pursuit of its purpose.
Directors are required to exercise care, diligence, and
sound business judgement at all times, and to act in
a responsible and ethical manner in alignment and
accordance with the laws of Namibia, best practices of
corporate governance, the reasonable interests of the
company’s stakeholders, and responsible citizenship.

The Board requires a formal strategic planning process for
the development and approval of strategic plans presented
annually by management, and monitors the company’s
performance against these plans.

Managing our Risks
Risk Management

NamPower’s risk management framework is based on
the ISO 31000: 2018 Risk Management Principles and
Guidelines. Risk management forms part of our strategic
focus, adding value through risk optimisation, by identifying
threats and opportunities.

Strategic risks are tracked and reported on at Executive
level as well as at Board level, through the Board Audit
and Risk Management Committee, on a quarterly
basis. NamPower has committed itself to improving risk
management within the organisation through risk-based
decision making. The process has been enhanced by the
executive management’s involvement and commitment,
through the identification and mitigation of Business Unit
risks.

The benefits of improved risk management are being
felt at both operational and strategic levels in terms of
proactive risk analysis and implementing risk mitigating
actions. NamPower seeks to continuously improve risk
management as it forms an integral part of its Corporate
Scorecard, which is used to measure the entity’s annual
performance.

Achievements

The utility has noticed significant improvement in project
risk management, as it involved both internal and external
stakeholders in assessing, analysing and evaluating risks
before the commencement of projects. This is aimed at
identifying and implementing risk mitigating actions that can
have both a negative and a positive impact to the project.
This process is also aimed at improving communication
and aligning NamPower’s risk management process to
the operations of service providers, external consultants
as well as other key stakeholders.

Future Outlook for Risk Management

It has been reported worldwide that identity theft, especially
of companies, is on the increase. NamPower is notimmune
to this type of theft/fraud and therefore it is critical for the
company to continue strengthening its operating systems
and for the public and service providers to be vigilant and
not to be caught off guard and become victims of such
fraudulent activities.

Corporate Risk Status

Below is a risk matrix as at June 2018 representing the top
strategic risks as identified. These risks are recorded and
tracked through the Corporate Risk Register as well as the
Governance Risk and Compliance system.
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High Level Strategic Risks

1. High cost of electricity supply (customer defection).
2. Cost/accessibility and security of funding.

3. Inability to meet the current electricity demand
with existing local generation and transmission
infrastructure.

4. Non-implementation of generation capital projects.

5. Change in regulatory framework (Modified Single
Buyer Model).

6. Slow implementation of Business Continuity
Management (BCM).

7. Lack of project risk registers.
8. Limited capacity and skills.
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STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT

AND ENGAGEMENT

NamPower values the importance of collaboration
with all electricity sector stakeholders to support
the development of the industry, accelerate
electrification towards universal access, develop
new products and services and deliver our project
portfolio.

Going forward, NamPower will therefore redesign
its approach to stakeholder engagement. This
approach will include the introduction of new and
frequent platforms of collaboration. Implementing
this new approach to stakeholder engagement
will be critical to the achievement of NamPower’s

vision.




OUR OPERATIONS

NamPower takes great pride in the regular maintenance and operations of its power
stations, substations and transmission lines, which form key elements in the delivery
of its mandate to supply secure and reliable electricity to the country.

NamPower continues to plan and develop new generation and transmission infrastructure in order to accommodate the
growing electricity demand in the country.

The company also manages and maintains the distribution networks in areas not incorporated into the existing REDs.
DEMAND AND SUPPLY

System Demand
A new maximum demand of 639 MW (without Skorpion Zinc Mine) was registered on 22 August 2017 while a new
maximum demand of 695 MW (with Skorpion Zinc Mine) was registered on 07 August 2017.

This shows an increase of 1.27% in the system’s maximum demand when compared to the previous record of 631 MW,
registered on 21 June 2017.

It was also observed that, due to requirements for regional South to North trading with ZESCO, a summer peak demand
phenomenon of 653 MW (without Skorpion Zinc Mine, as illustrated in the Table below) and 717 MW (with Skorpion Zinc
Mine) was observed on 09 November 2017.

System Minimum and Maximum Demand (excluding Skorpion Zinc Mine)

Week Day Maximum 653 MW
Week Day Minimum 276 MW
Weekend Maximum 622 MW
Weekend Minimum 316 MW

PERFORMANCE OF GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION INFRASTRUCTURE

Generation Performance

NamPower’s current fleet of power stations:

Ruacana Power Station Run-of-the-river Hydro 347 MW Flexible
Van Eck Power Station Coal 120 MW Emergency Stand-by
Anixas Power Station Diesel/Heavy Fuel Oil 22.5 MW Emergency Stand-by
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OUR OPERATIONS (continued)

Ruacana Power Station Energy Sent Out at Ruacana

Ruacana Power Station is the largest power station in Namibia by installed capacity (347 MW) and continues to be
a major contributor to meeting Namibia’s energy demand as well as ensuring a reasonable average electricity price.
NamPower recognises the critical role of Ruacana Power Station as it offsets the amount of power imported during the

past financial year by more than 27%. .E 300
250
As a run-of-the-river power station, the operations of Ruacana Power Station vary according to the Kunene River flow. © 200
A significantly lower than average river flow was observed during the 2017/2018 financial year when compared to the
past five years. The Figure below shows the average river flow recorded at Ruacana since the 2013/2014 financial year. 150
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NamPower optimises the dispatch of Ruacana Power Station in order to maximise the energy generated from the
available river flow. This is accomplished by operating the power station at base-load during times of high river flows and Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June
as a mid-merit/peaking plant during the remainder of the year when the river flow subsides. The Figure below shows the W Acpilnbdity, 2018CY" EESRelihility 2018FY  =Target(A) Target (R)

energy generated and sent out from Ruacana Power Station during the past three financial years. The energy generated
and sent out during the FY 2017/2018 amounted to 1,144 GWh, which is significantly below the annual average of 1,500
GWh.
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OUR OPERATIONS (continued)

Anixas Power Station

Anixas Power Station continues to play a critical role as a
stand-by emergency power station at the coastal town of
Walvis Bay. Itis fuelled by Light Fuel Oil (Diesel) during cold
start-up, and a switch-over is made to more economical
Heavy Fuel Oil (HFO) after the fuel pre-treatment system
and diesel engines have warmed-up.

Van Eck Power Station

The Van Eck Power Station is a coal-fired power station,
situated in Windhoek, with an installed capacity of 120
MW, consisting of 4 x 30 MW units. The station is mainly
operated as a standby power station due to its ageing
infrastructure and the high cost of fuel. Although all units can
be operated in generation mode, units 1 and 2 can also be
operated in SCO (Synchronous Condenser) mode to serve
as a backup to the Auas SVC (Static VAR Compensator).
The power station is still undergoing refurbishment and the
refurbishment project is currently in its final stages. Units

2,3 and 4 are currently able to operate at their minimum
loads of 11 MW at various times to support and stabilise
the Namibian Transmission Network.

Transmission System Performance

It has become imperative in the current competitive
economic environment for utilities to accurately measure
the performance of their networks. The Institute of
Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE) 1366 — 1998
standard, is a widely accepted international guide which
stipulates that the required reporting indices reflect
electrical transmission’s system performance.

The reliability reporting indices as indicated in the Table
below are based on the duration and frequency of supply
interruptions experienced by an average consumer. The
primary system performance parameters measured are the
customer average interruption duration index (CAIDI) and
the system average interruption duration index (SAIDI).

Transmission System Performance data

2016/2017 47.78 36.99
2017/2018 27.15 28.69

It can be concluded from the transmission system
performance during the FY 2017/2018 and the
corresponding score as per the transmission Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) depicted above, that the
system reliability performance of 99.87% was above the
set target of 99.50%, as illustrated by the fact that the
average NamPower customer experienced less than one
interruption (0.18) over the review period.

Arevised engagement plan for key stakeholders, including
the ECB and the REDs, has been implemented. This
plan encourages prompt communication by NamPower
Transmission to its stakeholders, informing them about
contingency plans undertaken during times when the
network is considered vulnerable.

The average customer restoration time after a power
interruption decreased from 4.18 to 3.05 minutes of
loss of supply when compared to the previous reporting
period. This can be attributed to the concerted effort of
NamPower personnel when attending to the restoration
of power supply to affected customers. The overall power
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0.74 0.18 4.18
0.49 0.18 3.05

transmission system availability was 99.87% during the
period under review.

Transmission Connections

During the year under review NamPower received
applications for new connections and upgrades, from
various parts of the country, the majority of which were
from the Erongo region.

Net-metering

Net-metering studies have been undertaken in order
to determine how many rooftop solar systems can be
integrated into NamPower network. The net-metering
capacities for Aussenkehr, Blumfelde, Mariental,
Noordoewer and Aranos have been studied to determine
the technical limitations for integration of rooftop solar
systems.

Studies are ongoing to confirm the net-metering capability
of other areas in the NamPower distribution network.

MAINTAINING OUR INFRASTRUCTURE

Generation
Power Station Maintenance

Each power station in NamPower’s fleet has a unique
maintenance strategy, tailor-made according to its
individual generation technology. Most of the routine
and annual maintenance at NamPower’s power stations
is carried out in-house. Routine maintenance on critical
equipment is scheduled automatically by state-of-the-art
automation systems. Unscheduled maintenance during
break downs is attended to by standby staff on a 24-hour
basis.

Transmission
Transmission Maintenance Strategy

NamPower is in the process ofimplementing a transmission
asset care centre. The objective of this centre is to
ensure that grid-connected assets are maintained over
the remainder of their expected life in accordance with
International Standards of Asset Management as defined
in PASS 55: 2008/ ISO 55 000. This is achievable through:

» Ensuring effective access to technical information
which will support improved labour productivity and
more effective maintenance.

» Continuously reviewing and refining asset care plans
in order to improve asset reliability and availability at
an optimum maintenance cost.

* Implementation of work management processes
which will enable control over all maintenance
activities ensuring a faster response time, better

utilisation of resources, and improved standards of
maintenance work.

* Optimising the management of transmission asset
spare parts through quantifying and proposing
revised stock levels.

» Standardisation of equipment according to set
specifications.

Line Maintenance

A number of new methods continue to be implemented in
order to optimise the existing line management strategy.
These methods focused on simplifying the tracking of line
inspections and standardising the format of reporting, thus
providing useful information for line maintenance planning.
Other initiatives implemented include the provision of
training in bush clearing and herbicide application.

Live line maintenance on the Southern 400 kV transmission
lines, which entailed focusing efforts on addressing the
most critical faults was successfully completed.

The procurement for stay-anchor refurbishment on one
of the major 220 kV lines commenced during the period
under review and will continue into the new financial year.

Substation Maintenance

An initiative to identify key substation equipment for
replacement, especially at the older substations, was
launched. Due to the fast-paced nature of technological
change, spare parts and technical support for older
equipment are in many cases no longer available. This is a
continuous programme to ensure continuity of supply and
the maintainability of substations.
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OUR OPERATIONS (continued)

PROJECTS

The implementation of new projects is vital in order to accommodate the growing electricity demand in the country.

A number of new capital expenditure and operational projects were planned for execution during the year under
review. The projects were aimed at expanding NamPower’s generation and transmission infrastructure.

PROJECTS COMMISSIONED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

The following projects as listed in the table below, funded by NamPower, IPPs and customers, were completed during

the year under review.

Ombepo Wind at Lideritz
Shiyambi 33 kV interim supply
Ejuva PV1 at Gobabis

Ejuva PV2 at Gobabis

Khan Filter bank

Momentous PV at Keetmanshoop

Alcon PV at Aussenkehr

Neckartal Weir and Dam substation (interim)
Whale Rock Phase

Sargberg 132/33 kV, 10 MVA Substation:
Otavi 33 kV supply

Otjikoto Substation 220 kV Reactor

Camelthorn PV at Outapi

Connecting the Renewable Energy Feed-in Tariff
(REFIT) Projects

NamPower successfully implemented the integration of
the IPPs on the NamPower network under the REFIT
programme (a programme under which NamPower has
concluded PPAs with 14 local renewable energy IPPs, each
to generate 5 MW). To date, 10 of the 14 REFIT projects
have been successfully commissioned, of which six were
completed during the FY 2017/2018. The completion of
the remaining four is expected during the FY 2018/2019.

Shiyambi Interim Supply

To facilitate provision for increased demand to the Green
Schemes around Cuito area, an emergency 132/33
kV substation was constructed and commissioned in
September 2017 with the final Shiyambi substation
requirements considered.

Sargberg 132/33 kV Substation Construction

The construction of the Sargberg 132/33 kV, 10 MVA
Substation supplying Cenored (Otavi) has been completed
and was commissioned in April 2018. The 33 kV feeder
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REFIT / PV 09/09/2017
Client 25/09/2017
REFIT / PV 27/09/2017
REFIT / PV 27/09/2017
:,j:gsg,':szg” Master 61272017
REFIT / PV 27/11/2017
REFIT / PV 19/11/2017
Client 02/12/2017
Client 09/12/2017
Client 19/04/2018
E:ESF';?;SJZE” Master 49/04/2018
REFIT / PV 03/06/2018

for Otavi was energised on 19 April 2018. The Ohorongo
feeder is not yet completed due to shortage of materials.
The outstanding works are expected to be completed by
30 November 2018.

Otjikoto 220 kV Busbar Reactor

A 400 kV busbar reactor at Ofjikoto Substation was
commissioned in April 2018. This reactor is currently
energised at 220 kV and will assist with voltage control at
Otjikoto. In future this reactor will operate at 400 kV once
the 400 kV link from Otjikoto to Omatando will be operated
at 400 kV.

Other major achievements for the year under review
include:

* New Kunene — Omatando 400 kV line in the north
of the country technically completed but not yet
energised due to the delay in procurement of the
substations.

* Rollout of the new Quality of Supply (QOS) Monitoring
System has been completed. The QOS Customer
Portal allows customers access to their QOS data for
their respective supply points.

PROJECTS PLANNED FOR AND IN PROGRESS
DURING THE YEAR

Generation

Refurbishment of the Van Eck Power Station

All four units at the Van Eck Power Station have undergone
refurbishment which started in 2013. The scope of the
work was based on findings during a Black and Veatch (B
& V) study of 2012, which was funded by the United States
Agency for International Development (USAID). The study
proposed refurbishment activities which would result in a
useful lifetime extension of the power station by another
five to ten years. However, after certain components were
opened up for detailed inspection, a number of additional
items were found to be in poor condition and in need of a
major overhaul. This caused a substantial increase in the
project timeline and original scope of work.

The project is now nearing its final stages, with Units
2, 3 and 4 operating at various times on their minimum
loads of 11 MW each in order to support and stabilise
the Namibian Transmission Network. Unit 1 still needs to
be hot-commissioned in generation mode as it has been
used primarily in Synchronous Condenser Operating
(SCO) mode thus far to facilitate avoidance of dangerous
resonance conditions.

Delays experienced to date on the project can be mostly
attributed to the ageing infrastructure of the power station.
Obsolete parts are the main challenge of returning the
power station to reliable operation. Reverse-engineering
of critical parts/equipment is sometimes required,
which ultimately leads to longer outages since design,
manufacturing (by foreign companies), testing, installation,

and commissioning thereof all take a considerable
amount of time. Further delays can be attributed to the
unavailability of sufficient coal stock as the promulgation
of the new Public Procurement Act (Act 15 of 2015) has
brought along new challenges in the timely sourcing of
steam coal for the power station.

The problems experienced to date are however constantly
being mitigated and new solutions being sought in order to
complete the project by the end of June 2019.

37 MW Hardap PV Project

In March 2017 NamPower awarded the tender for the
execution of the Power Purchase Agreement for the 37
MW Hardap Solar PV Power Plant to the Alten Renewable
Energy Consortium. The site of the project is located
adjacent to the Hardap transmission station near Mariental
and the Commercial Operations Date (COD) was achieved
in October 2018.

NamPower’s contribution to its 19% shareholding has
been the provision of the site, Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA), geotechnical and topographical studies
as well as the required transmission connection facilities
at Hardap substation. NamPower has as such procured
and is currently constructing the 66 kV transmission
interconnection facility at site.

Transmission

The following Figure provides a high level overview of the
transmission projects in progress as well as their planned
total expenditure in N$ million. In total there were 135
projects in progress with a combined value of N$ 3.59
billion.

Overview of major Transmission Projects in progress at the end of FY 2017/2018

Number of Projects

W Capital Projects 101
B Operating Projects 34

Total Cost (N$ million)
N$3,336
N$258
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The major projects in progress include:

« Kunene 400 kV Substation construction.
¢ Omatando Substation 400/132 kV extension.

e Masivi 132 kV Switching Station and SVC and
Shiyambi 132/66 kV substation construction.

* Ohama 132/66/33 kV Substation Development (near
Ombalantu).

* Hippo 132 kV Switching Station and 330/132/22 kV
Coupling Transformer replacements.

¢ Khurub — Aussenkehr 132 kV line construction and
substation upgrades.

¢ Procurement of 2 x 20 MVA mobile substations.

Kunene — Omatando 400(330)/132 kV Project

A central infeed into the high growth area in Northern
Namibia has been initiated as part of the Transmission
Master Plan. A 400 kV line from Kunene to Omatando has
already been completed. Unfortunately, this power line
will not be supplying any load pending the construction
of the Kunene and Omatando substations at each end of
the power line. The latter projects are currently still under
development.

Ohama 132/66/33 kV Substation Development (near
Ombalantu)

Progress continued on the transfer of load from the
Ruacana - Calueque — Baobab 66 kV network to the
Omatando — Ruacana 132 kV system, which will make
additional supply capacity available at Calueque for
water pumping purposes. Though procurement of sites
in communal areas and the associated environmental
clearance is time intensive, the project is progressing well,
ensuring that water supply to the Northern Area will not be
compromised.

Hippo 132kV Switching Station and 330/132/22kV
Supply

The construction of a new breaker-and-a-half 132
kV switching station is nearing completion and will
be commissioned by August 2018. The two 80 MVA,
330/132/22 kV transformers have already been procured,
and the procurement process for the 330 kV cables and
associated works as well as the Gas-Insulated Switchgear
(GIS) to 330 kV EHV (Extra-High Voltage) cable interface
to connect Hippo to Ruacana substation is at an advanced
stage.

Khurub - Aussenkehr 132 kV Line Construction

The project to build a new 132 kV line from Khurub (near
Noordoewer) to Aussenkehr, to provide for the increased
demand requirements from the grape producing schemes
at Aussenkehr on the Orange River, has been initiated.
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Fibre Optic Commercialisation

NamPower is engaged in implementing the Fibre Optic
Commercialisation project. This project is aimed at creating
a framework under which NamPower’s fibre optic assets
can be utilised for the benefit of Namibia and the Southern
African region at large, including the SAPP, whilst at the
same time furthering commercial viability for the company.

Demand Side Management
1mLED Campaign

NamPower launched its 1mLED Campaign, as part of the
Short Term Critical Supply Programme (STCS) in August
2016, under which a number of short to medium term
initiatives, including Demand Side Management, are being
implemented to address power supply shortages until a
base-load power station is commissioned.

The Campaign was undertaken to reduce electricity usage
in residential areas during peak times, which are 06:00 —
09:00 in the morning and 18:00 - 21:00 in the evening by
replacing approximately one million incandescent bulbs
with Light Emitting Diode (LED) bulbs at no cost. The
campaign was officially rolled-out in September 2016 and
successfully completed on 23 June 2017.

The consultant appointed for Measurement & Verification
(M&V) confirmed 181,955 LED bulb lighting installations
through an audit process carried out between January
2017 and May 2017. The audited installations translated to
energy savings amounting to 2.5 MW at the time, equating
to 3.3 GWh during week-day evening peaks.

PLANNED SHORT AND LONG-TERM PROJECTS

Generation

At the end of April 2018 several business cases for were
submitted to the NamPower Board for their final approval.
These business cases align and support the key objectives
set out in the NDP 5, the National Energy Policy, the NIRP
and the HPP.

The company will be looking into Wind, Solar PV, Biomass
and firm power supplies to augment local generation
capacity.

TRANSMISSION

The Transmission Master Plan is a five-year plan,
reviewed annually (latest update 2018 — 2022), which
describes the planned development of the Namibian
electricity transmission system. It presents an overview of
all aspects and relevant facts required by management to
make decisions with regard to the future of the country’s
electricity transmission system, including the transmission
infrastructure options, timing of initiatives and the relevant
financial implications.

The Plan makes provision for large transmission backbone
developments across the country, and is updated on
an annual basis to ensure that the company maintains
pace with the evolving electricity needs of the country,
and that network expansions are executed accordingly.

In particular, it serves as the major planning tool of the
Transmission Division to guide the transmission network
expansion.

NAMPOWER TRANSMISSION MASTER PLAN

Hippo 132 kV substation construction (commissioning planned

for end August 2018)

Ruacana 330/132 kV development including installation of 330

kV Extra High Voltage (EHV) cable to Hippo Substation
Ohama 132/66/33 kV Substation construction

Kunene 400 kV and Omatando 400/132 kV substations
construction

Omatando 132/66 kV transformers upgrade to 40 MVA
Masivi and Shiyambi substations construction
Auas — Gerus 400 kV line construction

Brakwater 20 MVA Substation construction

Khurub-Aussenkehr 132 kV line construction and substation

upgrade

2nd Auas — Kokerboom 400 kV line construction

2nd Namibia — South Africa 400 kV line construction (Obib —

Oranjemond 400 kV interconnector line)

The following map illustrates the existing and future NamPower network as well as future Master Plan network (which

will achieve a 400 kV backbone ring network):
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OUR OPERATIONS (continued)

ENERGY TRADING

Namibia forms part of the South African Power Pool
(SAPP), an electricity power pool formed in 1995
consisting of 16 member utilities in 12 countries, each
represented by their respective electric power utilities
as organised through SADC. The member countries
are Angola, Botswana, the Democratic Republic of the
Congo, Lesotho, Malawi, Mozambique, Namibia, South
Africa, Swaziland, Tanzania, Zambia and Zimbabwe. The
SAPP aims to facilitate the development of a competitive
electricity market within SADC. This saw the introduction
of a Short-Term Energy Market in 2001, the establishment
of the day-ahead market (DAM) in 2009, and live trading
in the Intra-Day Market (IDM) in 2015 followed by Forward
Physical Monthly (FPM) and Forward Physical Weekly
(FPW) in 2016.

The power pool recorded an installed capacity of 67,190
MW in 2017, with the majority of its generation mix made
up of coal power stations (responsible for 61.4%), followed
by hydro (21%). The remainder is made up of various
generation mixes, such as nuclear, Open Cycle Gas
Turbines (OCGT) and renewable energy. The operating
capacity stands at 60,719 MW. Given peak demand
(including reserves) of 55,009 MW, this leaves a regional
capacity surplus of 5,710 MW.

Currently the SADC region sits with an over-capacity and
all utilities within SADC are commissioning new generation
plants. Up to 30,646 MW of regional generation capacity
is planned to be commissioned between now and 2022,
according to the SAPP reports. Overall, utilities within the
SAPP have committed to increase generation capacity by
an expected 48.7% by 2022, providing ample reserves
and surplus capacity within the region.

SAPP competitive market trades contributed 24% with
bilateral trades contributing 76% in 2017/2018, 11.3%
and 88.7% recorded in 2016/2017 respectively. A total of
1,910,384 MWh was matched with 1,883,179 MWh or 99%
being traded on the market in 2017/2018. DAM contributed
highest trade volumes share with 72% followed by IDM
with 16%, FPM-W with 9% and FPM-M with 3%.

The average yearly DAM market clearing price for
2016/2017 was 7.23USc/kWh compared to 4.89USc/kWh
recorded in 2017/2018. Generally DAM market clearing
prices are becoming lower and lower year by year.

The demand for electricity fluctuates throughout the
day and as such proper planning is required to ensure
that there is a balance between supply and demand.
NamPower’s Energy Trading Division ensures that the
country’s electricity demand is met at all times. The focus
is always on optimising the energy supply mix through
demand forecasting, integrated resource planning, energy
budgeting, energy trading activities, energy reconciliation,
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energy financial settlement, and the negotiation and
management of Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs).

During the period under review NamPower commissioned

40 MW of REFIT capacity which contributed 9% of
energy to locally generated energy, compared to only
2% in the previous year. Although the amount of energy
commissioned increased, the percentage of imports from
neighbouring countries also increased compared to the
previous year due to low river flows recorded at Ruacana
during the year under review. This resulted in imports
increasing from 63% in the previous year to 73%.

Purchases from the SAPP market also increased from 6%
to 28%. Only two of the three of NamPower’s generation
plants, the Ruacana and Van Eck power stations, were
dispatched while the third plant, the Anixas Power Station,
was on standby for emergency. The dispatch regime for
Van Eck Power Station was, however, not maximised due
to the on-going refurbishment works of the plant.

NamPower also sources energy from the Innosun PV
plant, the first IPP to be commissioned in Namibia. This is
a non-firm supply agreement with InnoSun Energy (local
IPP). The available capacity varies, though up to 4.5 MW
is available during sunny periods.

REVIEW OF IMPORTS

NamPower continues to supplement its energy
requirements with imports from sister utilities in the SAPP
region. The availability and accessibility of surplus power
from the region helps NamPower to maintain an affordable
and secured power supply to its customers.

The demand-supply balance in the region has changed
significantly over the past decade due to a number of
reasons including climate change and economic slow-
down. Countries in the region are however focusing on
developing domestic power generation capacity to close
the forecasted gap between the supply and demand and
NamPower is no exception.

A number of import agreements will be expiring in 2020
and the company is gearing itself to ensure that more
local generation plants are brought on line to cover the
anticipated gap that will be experienced.

Eskom

NamPower and Eskom signed a firm PPA in March 2017,
which became effective on 1 April 2017 for a duration of five
years. As per the agreement, NamPower gets a firm power
supply of 200 MW and supplements its requirements by
sourcing additional power of up to 300 MW on the DAM.

ZESCO

During the year under review, NamPower received firm
supply of 39 MW from ZESCO (the national utility of
Zambia) until end January 2018. The capacity increased
thereafter to the contracted 50 MW after the Force Majeure
declared by ZESCO in 2015 due to drought was lifted.

Following the outage of the Gerus Substation as a result of
fire, NamPower continued to receive the firm power supply
through Zimbabwe (ZESA) to South Africa (ESKOM) and
then to Namibia. The performance of this agreement
has been reliable throughout the year and continues to
be, except during periods when there are transmission
constraints in regional transmission networks.

Zimbabwe Power Company (ZPC)

ZPC, a subsidiary of ZESA (the national utility of Zimbabwe)
continued supplying NamPower with 80 MW firm power,
which is dispatched based on the Load Factor of 50%.
This is a source based supply, stemming from the Kariba
Hydro power plant.

DAM

During the period under review, DAM sales increased to
18% compared to 6% during the previous financial year.

Energy Imports (excluding Skorpion) Composition for the Period July 2017 to June 2018

m/PC

B ZESCO
B ESKOM
B SAPP
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Local Generation Composition SAPP Market - Sales vs Purchases
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OUR OPERATIONS (continued)
OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY

In addition to having a very strong operating track record
and excellent capabilities in designing, operating and
maintaining high-voltage transmission lines and supporting
infrastructure; a highly skilled workforce and adherence to
sustainable practices, operational efficiency remains one
of NamPower’s core strengths.

NamPower understands the link between innovation and
efficiency, which underpins operational excellence, and
as a result continues to leverage technology, processes
and systems to best effect and in the interests of its
stakeholders.

Demonstration of some of the initiatives and projects being
implemented to achieve operational excellence are fully
described under the headings Information Services (iServ)
and the International Organisation for Standardisation
(ISO) Integrated Management System in this section.

INFORMATION SERVICES

The NamPower IT Services (iServ) once more recorded
high levels of availability for services, local area network
and wide area network (99.98%) during the period under
review.

Local Area Network 99.50%
Wide Area Network 98.04%
Services 99.98%

The Figure above indicates that most of the downtime
recorded was due to power outages at remote sites and
scheduled down time.

The process of rolling out Windows 10 with Office 2016 is
well underway with minor challenges being experienced.
As a move toward the cloud, mail services were joined
with Microsoft’s cloud-based mail offering. Five test users
were moved using Microsoft Office 365.

iServ has engaged in a technology solution investigation to
find a faster and less costly communication solution for the
WAN links. This path led to software defined networks. The
test phase was completed and a solution was identified.
From a business continuity perspective:

» the core network was replaced with the latest in
technology.
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» the backup solution and recovery methods for the
virtual server environment were replaced with a
solution that makes use of snapshots to provide a
faster and more accurate recovery.

In the next financial year, the following is planned:
» To replace the multi-functional peripheral devices.

« The edge network replacement project will be
completed and take advantage of the newly
implemented core network technology.

* The virtual environment hosting servers will be
replaced with a solution that will take NamPower
closer to the envisaged future cloud computing
solution.

* The investigation of solutions to move NamPower’s
ERP system into an in-memory architecture will start
during the FY 2018/19.

* The full implementation of the software defined
networks solution will be completed.

SAP ERP Business Applications

SAP is the ERP system that NamPower utilises for
managing all business processes, enabling operational
excellence and innovation. All SAP ERP systems were
patched to EHP7 level 18 during the period under review,
in order to introduce the latest system corrections and
security enhancements. The business intelligence
platform, SAP Business Objects Bl Suite, was upgraded to
version 4.2 for better analytics, reports and data discovery
capability. SAP Success Factors Performance and Goals,
a cloud based innovation product, was acquired as part
of an initiative to improve the Performance Management
System (PMS).

In the next financial year iServ will focus on the following
improvements:

» Advance Meter Infrastructure (AMI) by implementing
the Meter Data Management System and enhancing
the integration between remote meter reading and
billing.

» Better financial control for capital projects and cash
flow forecast by implementing Portfolio and Project
Management, Fund Management, and Treasury
Cash Liquidity Management.

* Acquiring a Business Process Suite for digital
transformation of case-based business processes
such as talent management and procurement
processes.

ISO INTEGRATED MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

In a drive to achieve operational excellence, NamPower
is in the process of implementing international standards
requirements to adequately and effectively address Safety,
Health, Environment and Quality.

To this end, the following International Standards are in the
process of being implemented:
* ISO 14001:2015 - Environmental Management
System.

* 1SO 45001: 2018 - Occupational Health and Safety
Management System (published on 12 April 2018).
ISO 9001: 2015 - Quality Management System.

As part of the certification journey the NamPower Board of
Directors approved the Safety, Health, Environment and
Quality Management (SHEQ) Policy Statement, replacing
the Safety, Health, Environment and Wellness (SHEW)
Policy Statement of 2010.

Through the new policy statement, NamPower commits to
the following:

* To ensure compliance in all its operations in
accordance with applicable legal and other relevant
requirements.

» To develop, implement, maintain and continuously
improve Safety, Occupational Health, Environmental,
Wellness and Quality Management Systems.

» To ensure reliable assets by implementing the Asset
Management System.

« To pro-actively identify, evaluate and mitigate
environmental aspects and impacts, hazards and
risks associated with operations and activities.

» To continuously monitor, measure, analyse, and
evaluate the effectiveness of the SHEQ Management
System.

+ To use the SHEQ Policy Statement as a framework to
set business and operational objectives and targets.

All NamPower stakeholders, including employees, are
expected to commit and adhere to the policy statement
by, among others, attending SHEQ Management System
programmes as and when required; taking responsibility
and being accountable for their own health and safety
as well as that of others in the workplace; identifying and
reporting potential hazards/environmental aspects/impacts
and risks to relevant NamPower representatives; and
adhering to all SHEQ Management System requirements,
policies, standards and applicable legal and other
requirements.

Furthermore, to ensure compliance with international
standards, a considerable number of Strategic High Level
Procedures had to be put in place. The bulk of the work that
needs to be executed forms part of process management
and resources are limited. This includes High Level
Procedures, Operational Procedures, Hazard Identification
and Risks Assessment, Aspects and Impacts Registers
and Safe Working Procedures. The documentation of
procedures will assist NamPower to improve its operations
by consistently providing quality service, create an audit
trail and preserve organisational memory.
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NamPower continuously strives to be an employer of choice and the best company Gender and Diversity Distribution
to work for. NamPower’s agenda plays a significant role in the achievement of its Gender
strategic objectives and is linked to the company’s mission, “To provide for the energy

needs for our customers, fulfil the aspirations of our staff and satisfy the expectations

of our stakeholders”. Our employees are the key drivers of our organisational success.

We therefore need to take stock of how our people influenced the performance of the

organisation and the footprint they made in creating organisational value.

Demographics and Diversity Female

194
Demographics and diversity information help to determine the pace at which the number of employees is increasing or s
decreasing. It also outlines the pace at which NamPower is addressing gender and diversity related matters. 20%

Our staff complement as illustrated in the Table below stood at 1,086 and grew by less than 1% during the reporting
period. This growth is associated with the appointments for employment related to staff development and experiential
learning. The employees on fixed term contracts include different short-term employment contracts, internship and job
attachments for students, and vocational trainees. NamPower provides employment opportunities for students and
graduates to enable them to obtain relevant experience either for permanent employment or as part of experiential

learning.
Number of Permanent Employees 890 913 939 938 978
Number of Employees on Contract 66 85 102 137 108
Total Number of Employees 956 998 1,041 1,075 1,086

Gender representation remains a challenge for the company. The representation of women stands at 20%, as illustrated Diversity

on page 63. NamPower has several objectives aimed at increasing gender representation and bringing about gender
equity especially in both management and specialised/senior supervisory employment categories. These objectives
include: increasing female representation to 30% by the end of the three-year Affirmative Action (AA) Plan (in 2019) and
increasing women in management (senior and middle management) specialised and senior supervisory roles by 27%.
During the period under review, the representation of women in middle management and specialised/senior supervisory
roles stood at 23% and 22% respectively. There has been slight progress in achieving these AA measures. NamPower
is considering different actions and interventions on how to advance gender equity to achieve its targets.

NamPower has been achieving its AA set targets in terms of the breakdown (AA designated groups) of employees’
diversity and people with disabilities. Racially disadvantaged groups represent 89% of the workforce as illustrated
below. In an attempt to address the challenge regarding the employment of people with disabilities, NamPower set itself
an objective to provide development opportunities for people with disabilities by providing at least two bursaries per year
to students with disabilities for the duration of the current AA Plan. The Company has been consistent in meeting this
objective.
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OUR HUMAN CAPITAL (continued)

Distribution of Staff by Age Range

Distribution of Staff by Length of Service (in-years)
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Human Resource Metrics

Human Resource metrics are important measures to quantify
the impact of employee programmes and Human Resource
processes and to measure the success (or failure) of Human
Resource initiatives. With these metrics NamPower is able to
track year-to year-trends and changes in Human Resource
service delivery.

The vacancy rate stands at between 6 and 8% while the
labour turnover rate stands at 5.60% respectively. The
disciplinary frequency rate is 2.45% considering 28 cases
that were reported during the period under review. The
Absence Frequency rate and Gross Absence rate due to
sick leave remain way below 1%. All the ratios are within
acceptable limits.

Leadership Development Programme

NamPower has embarked upon the project to develop
the leadership capacity of its managers. This intervention
is aimed at ensuring that NamPower is enabled to deliver
on its mandate, build a high-performance organisation and
meet the country’s expectation of energy self-sufficiency
and affordable security of supply within the shortest possible
time. As a result, a key action point that was undertaken
during the period under review was to undertake a
psychometric assessment and evaluation of employees
in leadership positions, to determine a holistic picture of
everyone’s current reality and future potential and to identify
both individual and team areas of development so as to
ensure that leaders are capacitated at both an individual
and team level to effectively drive the company’s strategic
agenda. While this project is gaining momentum, it is long
term, with the outcome only to be reaped in years to come.

Talent Management and Succession

NamPower recognises the importance of applying strategic
human resource planning for business improvement
purposes and for the achievement of its goals through
talent management. During the period under review, a
guiding framework for talent management was compiled.
This framework helps to define important terminologies,
and outlines the scope, principles and management
arrangements for talent management in the company.
Furthermore, a toolkit consisting of forms, criteria guidelines
to use for talent identification, tracking, monitoring and
reporting was also drafted.

Regarding succession management, all identified business
units’ lists of critical positions were refined and updated.
The number of critical positions in the company has been
trimmed to sixty five. To clearly assess developmental gaps
among identified successors, an activity to identify and
develop clear job competencies from the job descriptions -
and verifying these with various managers - was undertaken
and is still underway. The developed competencies will be
used to identify gaps among potential candidates against
core job competencies of critical positions.

Employee Relations

NamPower maintains healthy and positive relations
between itself and employees regarding the Company/
Union relationship (Mineworkers Union of Namibia). There
is a mutual agreement between the Company and MUN
managed through a Recognition Agreement. Issues that
affect both the employer and employees are negotiated
between the parties, as governed both by the Recognition
Agreement and the Labour Act. The parties engaged
each other to progress substantive negotiations for the FY
2018/19. The dispute declared during the previous year was
solved amicably and no reportable labour unrest or serious
grievances were recorded during the period under review.

Learning and Development

As a responsible employer, NamPower continues to provide
learning and development opportunities for its employees.
The company has embarked upon the recognition of prior
learning process for its employees, a process which was
endorsed by the Namibia Training Authority (NTA). During
the period under review about 800 employees received
different learning and development opportunities. Statutory
training opportunities were provided internally in courses
such as Class A First Aid Training, Basic Life Support
Training, Defensive Driving course, Power Cloud and
File Plan, Introduction to Business Continuity, Assessors’
Programme and Peer Educator Training. In addition to
the statutory training, employees also attended leadership
development programmes and technical training courses
related to their fields of work.

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL)

* NTAhas endorsed the NamPower RPL internal process
and has requested to liaise with the Education, Training
and Development (ETD) Section of NamPower on the
formal and external RPL process.

» Approximately 60 Operation Managers / Supervisors
have been trained as Assessors.

* The ETD Section managed to submit proof of training
and expects to receive an amount of N$ 3.8 million
back from the NTAin Vocational Education and Training
(VET) Levies.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT

NamPower prides itself in being committed to ploughing
back into the communities within which it operates
and continues to go above and beyond its mandate to
contribute towards the socio-economic development
of Namibia through its Foundation. The NamPower
Foundation, entirely funded by the utility, is its social
investment vehicle which empowers communities around
the country in four areas, namely: education; community
development; capacity and skills development and health
and social welfare.

The Foundation invested over N$ 1.6 million in two of
its flagship projects during the period under review. The
Medic Rush Project, an annual initiative of the Hochland
154 Round Table, was funded to the tune of N$ 399,400.
The initiative takes medical professionals to communities
in remote areas around the country to render free medical
and health care services, including specialist care with
referrals to the nearest hospital where necessary. The
medical interventions targeted the settlements north of
Tsumeb during the year under review. The second flagship
programme, which the Foundation has been supporting
since 2011 is Disability Sport Namibia, which received over
N$ 1.2 million for its development programmes for 2018.

The Foundation also invests in social partnership
programmes, and during the period under review, over
N$ 1.5 million was invested in schools, kindergartens, and
community development projects by providing an array
of goods and services such as fencing, infrastructure
rehabilitation, stationery, and irrigation systems, among
others.

NamPower Bursary Scheme

NamPower remains committed to providing educational
opportunities to young Namibians not only for its own
human resource planning purposes, but also to address the
shortage of skills especially in education (for Mathematics
and Science), vocational trades such as electrical general
and fitting and turning, and in different disciplines of
engineering. During the period under review, NamPower
supported 253 students and trainees, through different
bursary schemes and scholarships, to an estimated
cost of N$ 10.3 million. The majority of the students are
studying at local institutions of higher education, including
vocational training centres. The Table below depicts the
number of bursaries and study grants extended to external
and internal beneficiaries:

Dependants Bursaries 103 65 168
External Bursaries 30 43 73
Employee Study Grants 3 9 12
Total 136 117 253

_ NamPower Annual Report 2018

Vocational Training:

» Forty-one (41) bursaries were awarded for vocational
training at the NamPower Vocational Training Centre
this year.

* A NamPower Trainee who represented Namibia at
the WorldSkills Abu Dhabi 2017 Competition, the
world’s greatest skills competition which took place in
Abu Dhabi from 15 — 17 October 2017, now proudly
represents Africa on the WorldSkills Champions
Trust.

EMPOWERMENT

NamPower’s Commitment to NEEEP

NamPower as a responsible corporate citizen continues to
uplift and capacitate Previously Disadvantaged Namibian
owned businesses through its procurement activities. The
NamPower Equitable Economic Empowerment Policy
(NEEEP) is under review in order to align it to the Public
Procurement Act, 2015. The exertion of the NEEEP was
therefore temporarily suspended during the period under
review. Full execution of the NEEEP initiative can greatly
contribute to the Government's developmental plans
as contained in the NDP5 and HPP, particularly on the
goal of achieving an inclusive, sustainable and equitable
economic growth. The plan will further address goal 10 of
the UNDP Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) which
focus on inequalities.

SAFETY, HEALTH, ENVIRONMENT AND WELLNESS
(SHEW)

NamPower deems it crucial to uphold and safeguard
the safety, health and wellness of its employees and the
environment within which it operates. The SHE section
presents various in-house training courses based on
the clients’ (internal) needs. The Section also conducts
induction for various stakeholders of the company when
they visit or before they start carrying out work for the
company. Below is a summary of the activities that were
carried out in various areas during the period under review:

Safety

Selected staff members were trained on SHE aspects and
were appointed as SHE representatives focusing on loss
prevention at different fronts in the company. Furthermore,
emergency preparedness and evacuation awareness
sessions were held countrywide, while Emergency
Preparedness Plans were developed for most workplaces.
About 465 hazard identification and risk assessment
cards were conducted to ensure that hazards and risks
are identified, evaluated and controlled prior to and during
the execution of tasks. SHEW audits were conducted
throughout the Company by Safety Officers with many
becoming more aware of their responsibility in terms of
SHEW. The drafting of SHE Plans and Method Statements,
which is coordinated by a Safety Officer throughout the
company, is ongoing.

In the next financial year NamPower intends to prioritise
the implementation of SHEW audit findings and corrective
actions, to make sure employees undergo annual medical
examinations as they visit high risk areas to carry out
their work. NamPower will also ensure that all in-house
SHE training courses are registered under the Approved
Inspection Authority.

Health

Annual Medicals and Medical Disability Evaluations

NamPower continues to invest in the wellbeing of
its employees and invests greatly in medical care
programmes/initiatives for its employees. The three-
yearly medical examinations programme was carried out
during the month of August 2017. Two medical disability
evaluations and one medical tribunal were conducted.

Through constant wellness follow-ups, education and
awareness, the company recorded a number of new
diabetic, cholesterol and high blood pressure cases.
These cases are being treated and monitored.

Environment

Environmental Impact Assessments

A number of environmental impact assessments were
conducted to enable the company to apply forenvironmental
clearance certificates with MET for various development
projects in NamPower. Some of the environmental impact
assessments were performed by independent consultants
whilst others were performed by the NamPower
Environmental Section for existing substations and power
lines. Environmental Management plans, which include
scoping and operational plans, were submitted to the MET
as part of the application for environmental clearance
certificates. A number of renewals of environmental
clearance certificates were received.

Stakeholders Engagement

NamPower continues to have regular engagements with
relevant stakeholders and authorities such as the Ministries
of Mines and Energy, Public Enterprises, Environment and
Tourism, Agriculture Water and Foresty, Labour, as well as
the Namibia Nature Foundation (NNF).

Plans are underway to regularly engage other key
stakeholders such as customers, suppliers of goods and
services, financial institutions and other funding agencies.

Environmental Inspections/Audits

NamPower conducted environmental audits on a number
of projects to determine if contractors complied with the

Environmental Clearance Certificates issued by the MET
as per the Environmental Management Act, Act 7 of 2007,
and the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations.
Regular inspections are also conducted to determine if
there are any deviations.

The following sites/projects were inspected: Gobabis
Substation, Kokerboom Substation, Hippo Substation,
Kunene-Omatando 400 kV line, Ohama substation
platform, Sarberg Substation, Otjikoto Substation, Lithops
Substation, Hardap Substation, Trekopje Substation,
Baobab  Substation, Kunene-Omatando 400 KV
Transmission Line, Kokerboom Substation, Aussenkehr
Substation and Ruacana Auxiliary PV.

Environmental inspections were also conducted at
Brakwater and Van Eck power stations. The inspections
focused on waste management, hazardous substance
use and handling, and spill management. The non-
conformances observed were mainly the use of chemicals
without a material safety data sheet; expired chemicals;
improper waste management and soil contamination due
to chemical spillages. Environmental inspection reports
detailing the non-conformances and recommended
corrective actions were compiled and sent to respective
area supervisors for implementation.

Waste Management

Proper waste management is of utmost importance for
any company, as it prevents hazardous materials from
contaminating the environment as well as safeguards
the health of employees and communities. Great
improvements have been recorded in terms of waste
management particularly at the Van Eck Power Station.
The waste segregation and disposal practices, as well as
the awareness of employees, have improved greatly. The
draft for the NamPower waste management procedure
is currently under review by various stakeholders. The
document is aimed at standardising waste management
practices at NamPower.

Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCB) Project

PCBs were commonly used as insulation in electrical
equipment such as transformers, capacitors, current
transformers and voltage transformers. PCBs are harmful
to human health and to the environment. All PCBs were
banned by the Stockholm Convention in 2004 to which
Namibia is a signatory. NamPower, with the assistance of
the Africa Institute is currently phasing out PCBs, with the
completion of the phase planned for the year 2025 as per
the Stockholm Convention.
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ABRIDGED SUSTAINABILITY REPORT (continued)

Environmental Health
Air Quality

NamPower has an ongoing air quality monitoring
programme in place to assess the impact of the Van Eck
coal-powered station on the ambient air quality. In 2015
Airshed Planning Professionals was appointed to carry
out a baseline air quality study at the power station. At the
end of the study it was recommended that a monitoring
station for sulphur dioxide and particulate matter (PM10
and PM2.5) concentrations be established downwind
(directly west) of the power station. This was informed
by predominant wind directions as well as the simulated
areas impacted due to the power station operations. Two
exceedances (PM10) against the air quality standards
daily limit of 75 mg/m3 were recorded in May 2018.

Passive or diffusive sampling relies on the unassisted
molecular diffusion of gaseous agents (analytes) through
a diffusive surface onto an absorbent. During the period
under review, thirty-five passive/diffusive samplers
were placed at various sampling sites around the power
station to monitor for sulphur dioxide (SO2) and nitrogen
dioxide (NO2). Results obtained from the laboratory
were compared against the National Ambient Air Quality
Standards and no exceedance in the two pollutants has
been noted.

Namibia has neither ambient air quality guidelines or
standards, nor emission limits for industrial processes.
Reference is therefore made to the South African National
Ambient Air Quality Standards (SA NAAQS) since it is
regarded as having representative indicators for Namibia
due to the similar environmental, social and economic
characteristics between the two countries.

Sulphur Dioxide Concentrations in ug/m3 : 2017-2018 (plotted against the annual limit of 50 mg/m3)
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Nitrogen Oxide Concentration in ug/m3 : 2017-2018 (plotted against the annual limit of 40 mg/m3)
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Water Quality

The surface water quality programme for Van Eck Power
Station, Brakwater Depot and Ruacana Power Station is
ongoing. The monitoring programme was recommended
by Knight Piesold at the end of the water study in 2015.

The water quality of the Kunene River is still good compared
to the two other monitoring areas (Brakwater and Van
Eck). Renewal of the effluent discharge permit from the
Ministry of Agriculture, Water and Forestry for the Ruacana
Hydro Power Station was placed on hold until NamPower
is able to provide a work plan to rectify the current practice
of discharging raw effluent back into the Kunene River.
Discharging of untreated waste water into the river is a
concern as the river system is a shared watercourse with
the possibility of people located downstream of the power
using the water for human consumption.

Occupational Hygiene Monitoring

» Asbestos fibre monitoring was performed at Paratus
Power and Ruacana power stations, as well at the
Lideritz transmission station during the period under
review.

» Collection and analysis of cable trench covers for
asbestos was carried out. The cable trench covers
that contain asbestos material will have to be removed
and replaced.

* lllumination surveys were conducted at Van Eck
Power Station to establish the lux levels.

* Inhalable dust (coal dust) sampling was carried out
at Van Eck Power Station. Analysis results were
obtained from the laboratory and feedback sessions
were held with relevant employees.

* Plans for the removal of all material containing

o Annual Average Limit
2

May-18
Jun-18
A

Mar-18
Apr-18

asbestos at Ruacana Power Station are ongoing. A
site inspection was conducted at Ruacana Power
Station in January 2018 by three asbestos removal
companies who are Approved Inspection Authorities
(AIA).

» Occupational hygiene awareness sessions focusing
more on asbestos exposure, water and air pollution
were conducted at Ruacana Power Station, Tsumeb,
Ongwediva and Otjiwarongo depots.

* NamPower purchased the SV277 noise monitoring
unit that will be used to assess noise exposure at
various NamPower sites.

Wellness

The Wellness Section addressed diverse health and
wellness topics to raise awareness within the company. A
refresher course was also conducted for peer educators,
who have an important role to play in promoting wellness
activities and campaigns in the Company.

The Section continues to provide psycho-social support,
counselling and referral services to employees and during
the period under review, a total of 22 employees were
attended to in this regard. Since various personal and
organisational issues affect employees’ attendance and
performance in the workplace, the need has been identified
for a comprehensive Employee Assistance Programme.

NamPower employees continue to support and partake in
regular blood donation clinics conducted by the Namibia
Blood Transfusion Services onsite. A total of 150 blood
units were collected during the period under review, which
can potentially save 384 lives.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

NamPower’s financial performance for the 2018 financial
year exceeded expectations despite the prevailing
challenging economic situation in the country.

Group revenue has increased by 11% (2017: 18%) from
N$ 5.9 billion in the prior year to N$ 6.6 billion for the year
under review. The performance was primarily driven by the
tariff increase of 8% and a growth in unit sales volume.

In 2013, the Ministry of Mines and Energy introduced a
Long Run Marginal Cost (LRMC) Levy to avoid future price
shocks to the Namibian consumer that was included in
the 2014 financial year tariff at 2.54 cents/kWh. The year
under review did not include the LRMC Levy. In line with
the directives of the Electricity Control Board, the LRMC
Levy is ring-fenced in the books of the company and can
only be utilised with the specific approval of the Regulator.
It is thus included in the deferred revenue and as at the
reporting date it amounted to N$ 127 million.

Electricity sales volumes increased by 3% (2016: 4%)
from 4,157 GWh achieved in the prior year to 4,285 GWh
in the FY 2018. Maximum demand (including Skorpion
Zinc Mine) decreased from 677 MW achieved in June
2017 to 639 MW in June 2018 representing a decrease
of 6%. The decrease in maximum demand is attributed
to a decrease in production in the mining Sector and a
challenging economic environment. Renewable sources
of energy such as solar water heating and installation of
roof top solar photovoltaics have also contributed to the
lower demand.

During the 2016 financial year NamPower concluded 14
new Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) with Independent
Power Producers (IPPs) - 5 MW each in the renewable
energy sector under the Renewable Energy Feed-In
Tariffs (REFIT). Ten out of these fourteen (14) REFITs are
operational and supplying NamPower with energy. The
remaining REFITs will come on board during the course
of the next financial year. NamPower has purchased an
amount of N$ 171 million (2017: N$ 61 million) of power
from these power producers during the year under
review. The cost of electricity increased by 9% from N$
3.1 billion achieved in prior year to N$ 3.4 billion for the
year under review. Under the REFIT PPA contracts,
NamPower purchased power at N$ 1.37/kWh (solar) and
N$ 1.08 kWh (wind), which is adjusted annually on each
IPP’s anniversary with the Namibian CPI. The rainfall
experienced during the year was lower on average than
the prior year and consequently there was a decrease in
dispatch of the local cheaper generation from NamPower’s
hydro power station at Ruacana.

NamPower continues to rely on regional trading partners
to meet the country’s energy demand. Of the total 4,826
GWh units of electricity into the Namibian system during
the year under review, 73% (2017: 63%) was imported
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from the region. IPPs contributed 3% of total energy
generated during the financial year.

Other income for the Group decreased by 76% from N$
93 million to N$ 23 million during the period under review.
Included in other income are income from the fibre optics
rentals and property rentals. The Government grant
accrued income of N$ 7 million (2017: N$ 7 million) is
also included in other income. In 2010, the shareholder,
the Government of the Republic of Namibia made a
commitment to subsidise N$ 250 million towards the
construction of the Anixas emergency diesel power station
in Walvis Bay. Of this grant, N$ 46.1 million has been
recognised as income and the remainder N$ 203.9 million
will be recognised on a systematic basis over the useful
life of the power plant.

Other operating expenses increased by 7% during the year
under review. Repair and maintenance of transmission
networks and the power stations remain a core activity
of the company to ensure that assets remain reliable in
delivering power to the nation. The Company incurred
expenses of N$ 80 million in repairs and maintenance
on transmission networks. These activities will continue
to have a material impact on the Company’s operating
expenses.

Investment income for the year increased by 15% (2017:
24%) from N$ 673 million to N$ 772 million for the period
under review. Namibia’s prime interest rate remained
constant at 10.5% for the FY 2017/2018. The increase
in the average investments held and the fact that there
was no exceptional expenditure on capital infrastructure
during the period under review resulted in increase in
investment income. The next few years are expected to
be characterised by major capital outlays primarily in the
areas of expanding generation capacity and upgrading the
transmission backbone system from 220 kV system to 400
kV system; investment income is expected to decrease
correspondingly.

It is NamPower’s policy to hedge committed foreign
exposure. Changes in the market conditions, particularly
in the exchange rate of the Namibia Dollar against the
major trading currencies, (USD, Euro and British Pound)
impacted profitability as follows:

* Net fair value loss on derivatives and foreign loans of
N$ 65 million (2017: N$ 127 million).

» Net fair value gain on embedded derivatives on Power
Sale Agreements and Power Purchase Agreements
of N$ 21 million (2017: N$ 195 million gain).

 Fair value gain on firm commitments N$ 3 million
(2017: Nil).

+ Net foreign exchange gain N$ 5 million (2017: N$ 16
million loss).

The Group made a profit before tax of N$ 1.7 billion
compared to N$ 1.5 billion of 2017 financial year. This
turnaround was primarily due to the increase in revenue
and finance income received. Depreciation charge for
the year amounting to N$ 869 million (2017: N$ 789
million) was recognised in arriving at the profit before tax.
NamPower was liable for N$ 607 million (2017: N$ 434
million) current tax for the year under review. Group profit
after tax amounted to N$ 1.2 billion compared to N$ 1.1
billion achieved during the prior year.

Cash generated from operating activities increased from
N$ 1.6 billion during the prior year to N$ 1.9 billion. This
improvement is attributed to delays in the company’s
procurement activities. Capital expenditure for the Group
amounted to N$ 656 million (2017: N$ 725 million) for the
year under review. Debtors days have also increased from
58.7 days in the FY 2016/2017 to 65.8 days in the current
year which is indicative of the prevailing tough economic
conditions. Total assets for the Group increased to N$ 32.1
billion from N$ 30.9 billion of the prior year.

NamPower as a national utility remains focused on its
national mandate, that of ensuring security of supply.
Thus, Nampower places strong emphasis on availability,
reliability and affordable electricity to promote economic
growth and improve the living standards of the country’s
citizens.

The next few years are expected to be characterised by
major capital outlays primarily in the areas of expanding
generation capacity and upgrading the transmission
backbone system from 220 kV system to 400 kV
system and investment income is expected to decrease
correspondingly.

Ourshareholder, the Government ofthe Republicof Namibia
continues to render its support to NamPower, without which
delivery of our mandate would be constrained. NamPower
supports Namibia’s blueprint to become an industrialised
country by the year 2030. The NDP5 and the HPP set
out clear targets that must be achieved emphasising the
availability, reliability and affordability of power supply as
some of the game changers promoting economic growth
and improving citizens’ standards of living.
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DIRECTORS'
RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated and company Annual Financial Statements (“Financial
Statements”) of Namibia Power Corporation (Proprietary) Limited, comprising
the Statements of Financial Position at 30 June 2018, and the Statements
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity
and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the Notes to the Financial
Statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes, and the Directors’ Report, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the
Companies Act of Namibia.

The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors
determine as necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk
management.

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Group and
Company, to continue as going concerns and have no reason to believe that
the businesses will not be going concerns in the year ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the consolidated and
separate financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

Approval of Consolidated and Separate Annual Financial Statements

The Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements of Namibia Power
Corporation (Proprietary) Limited, as identified in the first paragraph, were
approved by the Board of Directors on 22 November 2018 and signed
by:

Ms K Ndilula Mr K S Haulofu
Chairperson Managing Director
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
for the year ended 30 June 2018

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
N$’000 % N$’000 % N$’000 % N$’000 %
VALUE ADDED
Turnover 6,594,816 5,920,719 6,594,816 5,920,719
Less: Cost of primary energy, 3,850,262 3,628,479 3,850,262 3,628,479
materials and services
Value added by operations 2,744,554 77.56 2,292,240 74.95 2,744,554 77.25 2,292,240 74.80
Interest and sundry income 794,175 22.44 766,225 25.05 808,208 22.75 772,075 25.20
3,538,729 100.00 3,058,465 100.00 3,552,762 100.00 3,064,315 100.00
VALUE DISTRIBUTED
To remunerate employees 768,311 21.71 669,553 21.89 768,311 21.63 669,553 21.85
To providers of debt 193,419 5.47 215,093 7.03 193,419 5.44 215,093 7.02
Taxation 606,714 17.14 433,611 14.18 606,714 17.08 433,611 14.15
1,568,444 44.32 1,318,257 43.10 1,568,444 44.15 1,318,257 43.02
VALUE RETAINED
To maintain and develop operations 1,970,285 55.68 1,740,208 56.90 1,984,318 55.85 1,746,058 56.92
3,538,729 100.00 3,058,465 100.00 3,552,762 100.00 3,064,315 100.00

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2017 financial statements due to an error and reflect adjustments made, refer to note 30 and
note 31.

- NamPower Annual Report 2018 NamPower Annual Report 2018 _



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R E PO RT | (for JSE* purposes)
To the member of Namibia Power Corporation (Proprietary) Limited

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Namibia Power
Corporation (Proprietary) Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 96 to 199, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
30 June 2018 and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.
ST R T R W= SIEMERS P
woine? LA | (O ewses il | D [ ' : B In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
sronnee KO D OR o : ; 5 - e -l material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
- : e [ ' : : 30 June 2018 and its consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the independence requirements applicable to performing
audits of financial statements in Namibia which is consistent with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (Parts A and B). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ethical requirements applicable to
performing audits in Namibia. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

— ez LIS

Tarping 2 r.i__*'l:’i.- = _ ¥ | [ ¥ The key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was

oo rionains -l of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of

the current period. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion
thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

*JSE - Johannesburg Stock Exchange
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Valuation of embedded derivatives

The Group enters into agreements to purchase and
supply electricity, known as Power Purchase Agreements
(PPA) and Power Sale Agreements (PSA). Revenue
from these contracts is linked to United States Dollars
and United States production price indices which give
rise to embedded derivatives.

At year-end, the carrying amount of the embedded
derivative assets and liabilities was nil (2017: N$319
thousand) and N$108 million (2017: N$128 million)
respectively. The valuation of the embedded derivatives
is complex and the assumptions used in the valuation are
subjective. The contracted electricity price used to value
the derivatives is based on a combination of factors over
the contract period. Forecast sales volumes are based
on the most likely future sales volumes which have been
back-tested against historic volumes.

The fair value of the embedded derivatives take into
account the inherent uncertainty relating to the future
cash flows of the embedded derivatives, such as liquidity,
model risk and other economic factors as disclosed in
note 29.8 of the consolidated financial statements. The
volatility of the variables impacting embedded derivatives
have a significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

To address the key audit matter, we performed the
following audit procedures:

Tested the design and implementation of the key controls
around the valuation of the embedded derivatives;

Our derivatives specialists performed the following
procedures:

* Reviewed and challenged the appropriateness of the
valuation model;

* Assessed the inputs in the model against
independently verifiable market data;

* Challenged the key assumptions used in the
valuation model;

* Reviewed the provisions of the PPA and PSA
to assess the appropriateness of the valuation
assumptions applied; and

* Reperformed the calculations of the models to ensure
accuracy of the valuations.

The audit team performed the following procedures:

» Agreed the information used in the valuation of the
derivatives to the source documents, i.e. contracts
and invoices;

» Compared the recalculated derivatives amount to the
general ledger and investigated any differences; and

» Assessed the adequacy of related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in line with IFRS 7:
Financial Instruments: Disclosure requirements.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the Chairperson’s statement,
Managing Director’s report, strategic overview, operational
reviews, business overview, sustainability report, financial
performance overview, corporate structure, the value
added statement and the directors’ report. The other
information does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,

matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
oneresulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the

consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(for compliance with the joint audit arrangement)

To the member of Namibia Power Corporation (Proprietary)
Limited

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial
statements of Namibia Power Corporation (Proprietary)
Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on
pages 90 to 199, which comprise the statements of
financial position as at 30 June 2018 and the statements
of comprehensive income, the statements of changes in
equity and the statements of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and the
director’s report.

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated and separate financial position of the Group
as at 30 June 2018 and its consolidated and separate
financial performance and consolidated and separate
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and
the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
independence requirements applicable to performing audits
of financial statements in Namibia which is consistent with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and
B). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the ethical requirements applicable to
performing audits in Namibia. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

The key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the
current period. This matter was addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon
and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.

Valuation of embedded derivatives

The Group enters into agreements to purchase
and supply electricity, known as Power Purchase
Agreements (PPA) and Power Sale Agreements (PSA).
Revenue from these contracts is linked to United States
Dollars and United States production price indices
which give rise to embedded derivatives.

At year-end, the carrying amount of the embedded
derivative assets and liabilities was nil (2017: N$319
thousand) and N$107 million (2017: N$128 million)
respectively. The valuation of the embedded derivatives
is complex and the assumptions used in the valuation
are subjective. The contracted electricity price used
to value the derivatives is based on a combination of
factors over the contract period. Forecast sales volumes
are based on the most likely future sales volumes which
have been back-tested against historic volumes.
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To address the key audit matter, we performed the
following audit procedures:

Tested the design and implementation of the key controls
around the valuation of the embedded derivatives;

Our derivatives specialists performed the following
procedures:

» Reviewed and challenged the appropriateness of
the valuation model;

* Assessed the inputs in the model against
independently verifiable market data;

* Challenged the key assumptions used in the
valuation model;

Valuation of embedded derivatives

The fair value of the embedded derivatives take into
account the inherent uncertainty relating to the future
cash flows of the embedded derivatives, such as
liquidity, model risk and other economic factors as
disclosed in note 29.8 of the consolidated financial
statements. The volatility of the variables impacting
embedded derivatives have a significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the Chairperson’s statement,
Managing Director’s report, strategic overview, operational
reviews, business overview, sustainability report, financial
performance overview, corporate structure and the value
added statement. The other information does not include
the consolidated and separate financial statements,
directors’ report and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial
statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and
separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated and separate financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated and separate
financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Companies Act of Namibia and for such internal

* Reviewed the provisions of the PPA and PSA
to assess the appropriateness of the valuation
assumptions applied; and

* Reperformed the calculations of the models to
ensure accuracy of the valuations.

The audit team performed the following procedures:

» Agreed the information used in the valuation of the
derivatives to the source documents, i.e. contracts
and invoices;

* Compared the recalculated derivatives amount to
the general ledger and investigated any differences;
and

» Assessed the adequacy of related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in line with IFRS
7: Financial Instruments: Disclosure requirements.

control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated and separate financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial
statements, the directors are responsible for assessing
the group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
and/or Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement

of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated and separate
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and/or the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures and whether
the consolidated and separate financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
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in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report for the year ended 30 June
2018.

1. Principal Activities

The Company is responsible for generation, transmission, energy trading and to a
lesser extent, the distribution of electricity in Namibia.

The activities of the subsidiaries and associates comprise:

» The provision of technical, management and other related services;
» The sale and distribution of electricity; and
* Property investment.

2. Operating Results

The operating results of the Consolidated and Company for the year under review are
se